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A) INTRODUCTION AND OBJECTIVES

2. Historic landscape character & archaeological ash historical content
Historic Landscape Character

Hook Quay is centred on SM97681161 in the commuofitlangwm,
Pembrokeshire. It is a linear holding of land lechbetween the western bank of the
Western Cleddau, to the north, and the residet¢iaélopment of Hook, to the south.

It lies within Cadw Registered Area 5: Milford Hawv&/aterway, classified as being
of 'Outstanding’ historic interest (Cadw & ICOMA®98) and also within Historic
Landscape Character Area 325: Little Milford. Thaseas are intended to define
places where local land use patterns have leficpéatly strong or distinctive
evidence in the landscape (Murphy & Ludlow, 200@)CA 325 mainly comprises
woodland on the steep valley sides and mud anchaegh on the fringes of the
Western Cleddau waterway. The deciduous 'Hook Wbadi‘covers much of the
holding dates to at least 1601.

Archaeological and Historic Content

Little Milford, just to the west of the holding, wan important coal-exporting port
and there are numerous coal shafts recorded otité of the farm boundaries, all
apparently disused by the end of the 19th Cenfurg.Scheduled Ancient Monument
(PE 529), Hook Quay (PRN 64808), within the holdisgf national importance for
its potential to enhance and illustrate our knowéednd understanding of the early
development of the Pembrokeshire coal industrytjquaarly concerning the local
organisation of transportation systems' (Cadw, 2006

The colliery at Hook was owned by the Owens of [@oTe one of the wealthiest
families in Pembrokeshire, and run through agentsased to entrepreneurs to
become the largest and longest-running colliethéarea. Coal was transported
down to the quay, first by tram road and later byarial tramway (PRN 94564),
where it was weighed at the weigh house (PRN 94béf)re being loaded onto
shallow draft barges for transportation to Milféddven. The colliery closed in the
late 1920s - 1930s and the quay was abandoned.

Other recorded archaeology within the holding idelsiHook Quay cottage (PRN
64810), recorded on the 1876 1st edition Ordnameceey map as the Anchor Inn,
and a nearby pigsty (PRN 94561).

A gazetteer of the recorded archaeology withinféinen holding appears below.

Key Objective

The management priority is the restoration of tigsty (PRN 94561) at Hook
cottage. Specific management advice is provideoviel




B2) HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT FEATURES

All known historic environment features are markedviap 1 of this agreement

These are divided into three types:

i) Archaeological and Historic Features: Archaealabsites, earthwork monuments,
ruined structures and individual historic gardestiees.

i) Traditional Buildings: Structures built befot®18 using traditional materials and
methods of construction.

iii) Historic Parks and Gardens: Discrete areasuod laid out in an ornamental way
for the pleasure of the owner.

All historic environment features have been alledatategories of importance:
Site Status A: Sites and Monuments of National Irfge.

Site Status B: Sites/Features of Regional Impoganc

Site Status C: Sites/Features of Local Importance.

Site Status D: Minor and damaged sites.

Site Status U: Sites requiring further investigatio

General requirements

Historic earthworks, stone structures, archaeodgites, traditional buildings, park
and gardens must all be retained and protectedstiggamage. The management of
these features must comply with the following gahezquirements.

U

- Do not remove any material from archaeologicaksitehistoric features, or
deposit spoil, farm waste or rubbish.

« Ensure contractors and all other workers on tha fare aware of the historic
environment features and comply with the requiresienthis agreement.
They should take appropriate measures to avoidiectal damage.

- Do not carry out any excavation, erect any newcstine or plant any trees
without the prior approval of the Project Officer.

« Do not site new fencing or vehicular tracks on aegflogical or historic sites
without the prior approval of the Project Officer.

« Ensure that the use of metal detectors and thetnegof discoveries
complies with the Treasure Act 1996 and associabeés of practice. The
Portable Antiquities Scheme website (http://wwwdBrorg.uk) provides
valuable guidance and information.

« Please report all discoveries of archaeologicakredt to the Dyfed
Archaeological Trust (01558 823131). This enalihesrt to maintain an up-ta
date record of archaeological discoveries.

"Scheduled" Ancient Monuments (SAMs) have statutoryprotection and consent
from Cadw may be required for works to these monumets. Consult the Project
Officer for advice.

"Listed Buildings" also have statutory protection and permission from the Local
Planning Authority may be required for some works.This also applies to
buildings within the curtilage of a listed building. Consult the Project Officer for




Advice

In addition to these general requirements you mustomply with the
specific sets of prescriptions set out below:

1) ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND HISTORIC FEATURES:

Archaeological sites, earthwork monuments, ruinedtsuctures and individual
historic garden features.

Location and description:

A search of the regional Historic Environment Rec@4ER) held by the Dyfed
Archaeological Trust has identified the followinges and monuments that are
indicated on Map 1.

Other sites may be known to the landowner and thleseld be identified to the
Project Officer who will pass the information tetByfed Archaeological Trust.

Name (& PRN) Period/Site type  NGR Status SAM/listing Management
required

HOOK QUAY (64808) Post Medieval SM97651167 A SAM PE529 Generic
quay

Hook Quay was an important element of the 18thwrgntoal industry in Pembrokeshire. It is locatedhie
inter-tidal zone on the south bank of the Westdad@au, one of several quays built to allow codi¢o
conveyed to Milford Haven. Caesar Mathias Juniadobk constructed the stone built quay in 1791 to
serve Hook Colliery. The quay is visible as a saigal masonry wall with a wooden framework to the
north and a raised area of made-up ground to thigasth is some 3 metres tall and the structuresmess
approximately 40 metres north-south by 40 metreswast. The plan of the wall is irregular, comimgs
two nearly parallel walls some 15 metres apartaligghed north-south, projecting approximately 2Gnes
into the inter-tidal zone of the river.

Looking west, the eastern stonewall of the quay and wooden structure at its northern end.



The linking, northern wall has suffered collapse & incomplete. A wooden structure is locatethat
northern end of the quay, with posts driven in@fud and supporting a pair of horizontal and catiis
crossbeams, between which are diagonal bracing$égm structure projects some 5 metres beyond the
north end, and continues along the east and waest,sbf the stone quay. It is unknown whether theden
construction is contemporary with the building lod stone quay or is a later addition, possiblyaepl the
damaged northern stonewall. (Source: Cadw Schedule@dnt Monument Record (2005))

The remains of the wooden platform on the northern end of Hook Quay.

Hook Quay was visited during the Tir Gofal archagatal farm visit of 19/01/2009). The quay has
undergone extensive restoration and maintenance 8007, with the help of Cadw grant aid, and works
are ongoing. Vegetation has been removed, damagednry has been restored and the stone structsire ha
been consolidated. A metal brace, to be attachaddme concrete block, has been fitted through th
western wall as it was bulging outwards. The oveasss that, during the excavation of the trenclake the
brace, the inner walls of the quay were found tofdressed stone and a photographic record wae.mad

The areas alongside both the western and eastdmanasilting up, to some 2 metres depth accagrttn
the owner, and becoming salt marsh. There is apparesolid base beneath. The wooden structure is
slowly deteriorating and there is little that cadone to prevent this - a comprehensive photograptu
drawn record of the remains would be desirableadsa of scrub in the northwest corner of the stone
structure has had to be left in place as it has ba®me to an otter for several years.

It is understood, from the Cadw Inspector of Antidonuments, that ‘the work required to make the
guayside stable is quite large in scale and regjaineengineered solution which has yet to be drgwn
(23/01/2009). Such works fall beyond the parameiétie Tir Gofal scheme.

(64812) Post Medieval post SM978311771 C Generic

Post recorded in the mudflats of river on 1908 @dition Ordnance Survey map - possibly part of the
wooden quay or a mooring point. Not shown on moaeapping.

(64813) Post Medieval post SM9774117z C Generic

Post recorded in the mudflats of river on 1908 &dition Ordnance Survey map - possibly part of the
wooden quay or a mooring point. Not shown on moaeapping.

HOOK QUAY (94563) Post Medieval SM97681165 B SAM PE529 Generic
building

Located within the scheduled area of Hook Quaysmall building recorded on the 1861 1st edition
Ordnance Survey map and presumably associatedheittnansportation of coal down to the quay. It is
located to the southeast of the weigh house (PRMZMand near the terminus of the incline that besabt
from the quay and may possibly have housed winepeay for the aerial tramway (PRN 94564).



Looking west, stone foundations of 18™-19" century building PRN 94563
The square foundation is now under turf but iteeican be seen from the slightly paler colouthef
grass. The southeast corner has been exposedingvéia@ssed stone blocks.

HOOK QUAY (94564) Post Medieval SM97821167 C Generic
tramway

An aerial tramway recorded on the 1908 2nd ediodnance Survey map, used for conveying coal to
Hook Quay (PRN 64808), running to the north and eBslook Quay cottage (PRN 64810). The course of
this tramway is still defined to the east of thétage by a continuous clearing in the heavily wablidiside
(Cadw, 2005). During the Tir Gofal archaeologi@ait visit of 19/01/2009 the line of the tramway gt
clearly visible through the woods, now being usedetegraph poles.

Incline through the woos, route of the 19" century aerial tramway PRN 94564

HOOK QUAY (94565) Post Medieval SM9786116z C Generic
tramway

Recorded on the 186$' &dition Ordnance Survey map, a tram road, togetitarPRN 94566, linking the
Hook colliery to Hook Quay (PRN 64808). This wabseguently abandoned to be replaced by an aerial
tramway (PRN 94564). The site of the tram road matsvisited during the Tir Gofal archaeologicalnfar
visit of 19/01/2009 and it is not known whether arace survives.



HOOK QUAY (94566) Post Medieval SM9768116¢< C Generic
tramway

Recorded on the 1869' &dition Ordnance Survey map, a tram road linkirggHiook colliery to Hook Quay
(PRN 64808), and a continuation of tramway PRN ®43this was subsequently abandoned to be replaced
by an aerial tramway (PRN 94564). The site of thentroad was not visited during the Tir Gofal
archaeological farm visit of 19/01/2009 and it @& known whether any trace survives

HOOK QUAY (94567) Post Medieval SM97701164 C Generic
building

A building, of unknown function, recorded on thedD82nd edition Ordnance Survey map, part of the-18t
19th century Hook Quay complex that exported coalrdto Milford Haven. The building is not shown on
modern mappingNo surface traces of this building were noted duthe Tir Gofal archaeological farm
visit of 19/01/2009 although archaeological deosiay still survive below ground.

HOOK QUAY (94568) Post Medieval SM9768116: C Generic
building

A building, of unknown function, recorded on thedD82nd edition Ordnance Survey map, part of tha-18t
19th century Hook Quay complex that exported coalrdto Milford Haven. The building is not shown on
modern mappingNo surface traces of this building were noted duthe Tir Gofal archaeological farm
visit of 19/01/2009 although archaeological deposiay still survive below ground

(94569) Post Medieval SM97331142 C Generic
mine

Mine workings located on the steep wooded slopghdavest of Hook Quay (PRN 64808). Mining activity
in Pembrokeshire increased during the 18th cerandyexisting works were developed further and new
workings were established. The colliery at Hook wased by one of the county's wealthiest families,
Owens of Orielton and it became the largest anddstirunning of the collieries in the area. Itneertain
when the colliery and quay were abandoned, althaligiollieries in the Pembrokeshire field were ldeed
uneconomic when the British coal industry was matiised in 1947 and were closed.

Entrance to the mine workings PRN 94569 within the woods.

The mine was visited during the Tir Gofal archagatal farm visit of 19/01/2009. The entrance te th
workings have been secured by an iron gate sositomly possible to see a narrow tunnel, approxilyate
1.75 metres high, hewn into the rock and headiraigttt back into the hillside.



Historic Environment Objectives:

The purpose of the management is to:

Ensure the survival of visible features.
Ensure archaeological deposits beneath the grawfate are not disturbed.
Prevent progressive degradation by adopting susikarfarming practices.

In order to achieve this you will need to obsehe following:

Generic Management Prescriptions see also General Requirements - Section B2

1. Maintain the agreed stocking level to encousgeund grass sward or low
growing vegetation, without poaching or causings&no.

2. Do not install new drains or underground semszice

3. Locate feeding and watering stations away frathaeological and historic
features.

4. Avoid using heavy machinery on sites or closarttaeological and
historic features, especially in wet weather.

5. Do not plough archaeological or historic feasui@ cultivate so close as to
cut into the remains. A minimum buffer zone of Zradvised. In the case of
monuments already under cultivation and where ¢ineeament does not
exclude the monument from cultivation, ensure thatdepth of cultivation is
not increased.

6. Remove any dead and unstable trees from theityicif archaeological and
historic features with care, leaving roots to rositu. Ensure that machinery
does not cause further disturbance. Agree withPtiogect Officer a suitable
method for repairing any damage caused, for exarbgle/ind-throw.

7. Control scrub on archaeological and histori¢uiess by cutting. Roots must
be left in the ground and must not be pulled or ouig Treatment with an
approved herbicide may, exceptionally, be permiitegigreement with the
Project Officer. (Capital Works Option).

8. Do not burn materials on site.

9. Ensure that rabbits are kept under controlpbtiby excavating within an
archaeological or historic feature.

10. Consult your Project Officer a suitable metfmdrepairing any damage
caused by burrowing animals. (Capital Works Option)



ii) TRADITIONAL BUILDINGS:

Location and Description:

Traditional buildings are those built before c.19&#g traditional materials and
methods of construction, to serve the needs obmesty farming practices. Typically,
they will use locally available materials and skithough mass-produced materials
(bricks, corrugated iron) may sometimes be locztlgracteristic.

The following traditional buildings have been idéad:

Name (& PRN) Period/Site type  NGR Status SAM/listing Management
required
1 HOOK QUAY (94561) Post Medieval SM9775116¢€ B Specific
pigsty

A 19th century pigsty, located to the east of thede at Hook Quay, comprising two separate, synicaétr
pens with access to a low building. It is builtfregtone-rubble with dressed, squared quoins buditiggte-
pitch roof, presumably of slate tiles, has comijegene.

4
\

Looking east and looking northwest, the Hook Quay pigsty
The walls appear to stand to full height, with #xeeption of a small area of tumble in the norttwe
corner, and the rear corners of the building haenlzonsolidated, by the owner, with lime-mortar.

From The Historical Farm Buildings of Wales (Wilia@®86): “The vast majority of surviving Welsh
pigsties are.... 'in and out' type with a smalbdyeontaining the feeding trough leading into a sileg
section usually covered with a single-pitch roobgtlof these sties were built as freestanding pairs sty
being the mirror-image of the other. ...The stiesewsually only large enough for one sow anditter,lor
a couple of fattening pigs. A common size is 2.%re®by 2 metres internally, with a yard of similar
proportions. The trough was often built into thenfrwall of the yard, so that it could be filledthout
entering the yard: the troughs themselves wereredhcast iron, slate, or earthenware. A few pégsivere
built with lofts: these were used as poultry houdissexamples of this type of pigsty appear to loero
than the nineteenth century in Wales. Betweenrd #nd a half of all Welsh farms have survivingspies,
though hardly any are inhabited today”.

HOOK QUAY (64810) Post Medieval SM9772116< B Generic
cottage

Hook Quay cottage is recorded on the 1876 1stoedilirdnance Survey map and is named the 'Anchor Inn
on the1908 2nd edition OS map.

HOOK QUAY (94562) Post Medieval SM9766116¢ B Generic
weigh house

The weigh house is located on the 18th century Hpa&y, although it is excluded from the scheduled a
of the auav. A stor-bhuilt. sinale-staorev huildina that oriainallv measured 3.5 metratth-south hv 3.2



metres east-west. It has been renovated and exténdiee south, now measuring 6.6 metres northhsout
The roof was originally pitched but it now has epshg flat roof. Coal was weighed at the buildirejdye
being loaded onto barges at the quay for transgp@mtdown the Milford Haven waterway.

The restored and extended weigh house and the eastern quay wall.

The building was seen, during the Tir Gofal arcihagical farm visit of 19/01/2009, to be in a good,
weathertight condition following its restorationdaextension.



Historic Environment Objectives:
The purpose of the management is to:

« Promote the survival of traditional buildings o tlarm

- Prevent progressive decay of traditional buildittgeugh neglect.

« Promote the sympathetic use of traditional buildimgthin sustainable
farming practice.

In order to achieve this you will need to obsehe following:
Generic Management Prescriptions - see also Genefdequirements section B2

1. Those traditional buildings in a weatherprodd arstructurally sound
condition must be maintained in a weatherproof dmrd

2.Those traditional buildings or parts of tradiabbuildings that have not
been previously modified must be maintained usiaditional materials and
methods of construction.

3. Characteristics and features that reflect hystod function of the
traditional buildings identified in this agreememast not be removed.

4. Wherever practicable, repair original featuagber than replace them.
(Capital Works Option)

5. Repairs should be unobtrusive and make usepsbppate traditional
materials and methods of construction. (Capital K§@ption)

6. When repair is not possible, replacement featomest be modelled on the
originals, using the same materials and methodsmdtruction. (Capital
Works Option)

7. Ensure the retention and sympathetic repairsbbtic coverings and
finishes such as lime-wash, lime-render or weatloaxrding. The appropriate
traditional materials must be used. (Capital WdDksion)

8. Do not disturb protected species (such as lvdiara owls) that use the
building. If these species are present you willchedicence from CCW to
carry out any work on the building.



Specific Management Requirements for individual Tralitional Buildings:

The following individual traditional buildings aseibject to specific management
prescriptions that are in addition to and (in theecof conflict) take precedence over
these generic requirements:

Site 1 on MAP 1 HOOK QUAY (94561) SM97751166

In addition to the Generic Management Prescriptions listed above the following management is
recommended.

The pigsty is the main focus of the Tir Gofal amtblagical farm visit as the owners would like to
restore the building to keep pigs in it and Dyfediaeological Trust welcomes such a scheme.

The walls look solid and the rear corners haven#g®een consolidated with lime- mortar. The
remaining walls would benefit from similar consalighn to prevent moisture penetration and the
vegetation needs to be controlled, particularlyityebracken and coarse grasses growing on the
walls. There appears to be a discreet area of matamble at the northwest corner that requires
reparation but the main work required on the bodds the restoration of the roof.

Judging from the profile of the walls it seems hkihat the pigsty had a single-pitch roof and,
although no roofing materials appear to surviveyas probably of slates similar to those on Hook
Quay cottage.

1. Repair

The management aim is to return the pigsty to a weherproof and stable condition. Tir Gofal
advice advocates the use of materials that matchdbke used originally. Repairs should be
undertaken on a like-for-like basis, modelled on th originals and using similar materials and
methods of construction.

Walls

Repointing is premature until mortar has weathdak to a depth equivalent to the joint width or is
very loose. New pointing should match the materal finish of existing pointing as closely as
possible. A nearly flush finish is appropriate liistinstance. Vegetation on the walls should be cut
back, leaving the roots in situ, and spot-treateprévent re-growth. Following vegetation removal
masonry should be consolidated and repointed.

Re-roofing

The roof of the pigsty is completely gone, expostmgwall tops of the pig house to the elements.
Replacing roof timbers: as a general rule, replaserfeatures should be modelled on similar surgivin
examples. Where these do not exist the emphasiscshe on matching details appropriate for the
locality and building's age. In this instance slatthe appropriate roof covering and should beluse

over a softwood supporting structure.

Doors
The pigsty doors no longer survive and their oagjepppearance is no longer known.

Historically the trend in pigsty doors was towasitaple wooden plank doors. They tended to be of
softwood construction and finished with an estaiatcolour. The doors should be replaced to these
specifications, reusing old door furniture if itagailable.



2. Preventative maintenance

If repair of the pigsty is not carried out then themanagement aim is to prevent the progressive
decay of the building

Consolidate areas of loose masonry using a traditiime mortar mix, trying to follow the original
mix and appearance as far as possible.

Consider capping the wall tops in order to preweater from washing out lime mortar bonds and
accelerating collapse.

Cut back vegetation on the walls, leaving the raotstu and spot treat to prevent re-growth.
Monitor mature trees close to the building. Consfd#ing trees that are at risk of causing damage
windthrow and removing branches in danger of fgltim the building.

i) HISTORIC PARKS AND GARDENS:

There are no Historic Parks and Gardens in the Dyfe Archaeological Trust Historic
Environment Record for the application area



kilometres

- Farm Boundary

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey materiawith the permission of Ordnance Survey on behaléf the
Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office© Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright
and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedingd/Velsh Assembly Government. License Number: 1000672008.

Fig 1: Location Map
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Fig 2: Map showing the recorded sites of archaecébgnterest around Hook Quay
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Fig 3: Plan outlining the surviving archaeologyaeted at Hook Quay.
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MILFORD HAVEN WATERWAY

HISTORIC LANDSCAPE CHARACTER AREA:
325 LITTLE MILFORD

GRID REFERENCE: SM 967122
AREA IN HECTARES: 54

Historic Background

A small character area occupying the upper reashttre Western Cleddau, within the parishes of
Freystrop and Llangwm. The medieval Manor (andgbdrof Llangwm was a holding of the de Vales
until a Roche kinsman, Gilbert de la Roche, acatirén the late 18 century. Its relationship with the
Lordship of Haverford, within which it lay, was ays a matter of dispute. Freystrop was also a
member of the Lordship of Haverford. Its manoriahize probably lay in the vicinity of Lower
Freystrop. This character area comprises steeplanddn the west flank of the river, which is now
known as Little Milford Wood. It has been woodedcs at least 1592 when it was recorded as
Freystrop Wood, and was part of the vast Perratest The area also takes in Hook Wood which was
included within George Owen'’s list of the greateogs of Pembrokeshire in ¢.1601. A small
settlement at Little Milford, lying at the head@&mall creek, was recorded since the latécEntury.

It developed as an informal shipping-place, likengnather Cleddau settlements, but unlike the
remainder of this area it has experienced changesd transformed during the 1 8entury and 19
century from a local shipping place to one of th@mports for exporting coal from the Pembrokeshire
coalfield. By 1839 a tramway led down from Freyptto the quays, and an incline from Maddox Moor
to Little Milford had been established by 1851. Hwer, the decline in the coal mining industry ia th
early 20" century followed by the closure of the Pembrokesbollieries in 1947, resulted in Little
Milford reverting back to a minor shipping/landiptace.

Description and essential historic landscape compents

Little Milford historic landscape character aresslon the western bank of the Western Cleddau and
consists almost entirely of woodland. The bankefwaterway rises steeply, at the base in rocky
outcrops, to over 70m. Most of the woodland isestablished deciduous, but some consists Bf 20
century coniferous plantations. A shipping plaes lt Little Milford where the mouth of a steepesid
tributary valley meets the waterway. Formerly aybesal exporting port, Little Milford is now a gait
backwater. A substantial house in the Georgiantteedat Little Milford looks across the salt marsh
and mud of the foreshore. Archaeological sitesiwithis area are few, and consist of the industrial
features mentioned above. There are no listedibgid



This is a very well defined area as it is boundeae side by the Milford Haven waterway and
elsewhere by villages and farmland.

Conservation priorities
The main conservation priorities of this area contdke management of the deciduous woodland.

Sources Charles 1992; Edwards 1950; Edwards 1963; Frey$arish tithe map 1839; Llangwm
Parish tithe map 1841; NLW PICTON CASTLE VOL. 1;ddance Survey 6" First Ed. 1869; Owen
1897; Rees 1975



